
WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION
PUBLIC MEETING - AUGUST 2017

August 10, 2017
11:00 a.m.

South Puget Sound Community College
4220 6th Ave. SE

Lacey, WA



COMMISSIONERS

EX OFFICIOS

STAFF

Bud Sizemore
Chair

Julia Patterson
Vice Chair

Kelsey Gray Ed Troyer Chris Stearns

Senator
Steve Conway

Senator
Lynda Wilson

Representative
David Sawyer

Representative
Brandon Vick

David Trujillo
Director

Amy Hunter
Deputy Director



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

P.O. Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360)486-3440  (800)345-2529  FAX (360) 486-3625 

 
South Puget Sound Community College Lacey Campus 

4226 6th Avenue SE  Lacey, WA 98503 
August 10, 2017 

Please note, agenda items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair 
Public Meeting – August 10, 2017 

11:00 AM Call to Order                                                                                                   Bud Sizemore, Chair   
11:05 AM Executive Session 

Discuss Pending Investigations, Tribal Negotiations and Litigation   
The Public Meeting will Reconvene at approximately 12:00 PM 

Tab 1 
12:00 PM 

 

Welcome and Introductions                                                                           Bud Sizemore, Chair 
 
Consent Agenda   (Action)                                                                                        

 July 13, 2017 Minutes                                                                                                              
 New Licenses and Class III Employees 

Class III Employees/Snoqualmie (Action) 
 
Recognition for 25 Years of Service – Director Trujillo                              Bud Sizemore, Chair   
 
Director’s Update                                                                                       David Trujillo, Director

 
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS 

Tab 2 
12:30 PM 

 

RULE UP FOR DISCUSSION ONLY 
 

Petition for Rule Change     (Ducks Unlimited)                           Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
Petition from Scott Eisenhauer  

 WAC 230-11-087 Other Pricing Plans for Members Only Raffles  
 

Tab 3 
12:45 PM 

 

2017-19 Budget Presentation                                       Michael Kashmar, Chief Financial Officer 
 2017-19 Budget Approval  (Action) 

Tab 4 
1:30 PM 

 

National Conference on Problem Gambling & Other Commission Activities 
                                                                      Lisa Saila, Special Agent/ Problem Gambling Liaison 
 

2:00 PM Other Business/General Discussion/Public Comments 
 

2:30 PM Executive Session Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110 (1)(g) 
Employee Performance Evaluation(s) 
 

The Public Meeting will Reconvene at approximately 4:00 PM 
4:00 PM Meeting Adjourn 

 
Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend 
Commission meetings. Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be 
directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637. Questions or comments pertaining to 
rule changes should be directed to the Rules Coordinator (360) 486-3447. 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

1 
 

 

July Gambling Commission Meeting Recap 
Hampton Inn and Suites 

4301 Martin Way Olympia, WA 98516 
July 13, 2017 

 
Commissioners Present:      
Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 
Kelsey Gray, PhD. 
Chris Stearns  
Ed Troyer - via phone 
 
Ex Officios Present: 
Senator Steve Conway 
Representative David Sawyer 
 
Staff Present: 
David Trujillo, Director; Amy Hunter, Deputy Director; Tina Griffin, Assistant Director; 
Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager; Haylee Mills, Staff Attorney; Julie Lies, Tribal 
Liaison; John Meader, Assistant Attorney General; Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant 
 
Executive Session 
Chair Sizemore called the July 13, 2017 Gambling Commission Meeting to order at 9:06 a.m. He 
recessed the meeting to Executive Session at 9:06 pursuant to the RCW 42.30 and stated the 
Commissioners would discuss Tribal Negotiations, Pending Investigations and Litigation.  He 
announced the Commissioners would return at 11:00 a.m.  

 
-Public Meeting-   

Chair Sizemore called the July 13, 2017 Gambling Commission meeting to order at 11:10 a.m. 
He welcomed everyone to the meeting and introductions were made. Commissioner Troyer 
joined the meeting by phone.  
 
There were about 30 people in attendance.  
 
Tab 1 
Consent Agenda: 
May Commission Meeting Minutes/ /New Licensees  
Commissioner Stearns moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0  
Commissioner Troyer voted by phone. 
 



2 
 

Snoqualmie Class III Gaming Employees Licensees 
Commissioner Gray moved to approve Snoqualmie Class III Gaming Employees as presented. 
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 4:0 
Commissioner Stearns abstained.  
Commissioner Troyer voted by phone. 
 
Director’s Update: 
Director Trujillo reported that Commissioner Gray will be attending the Commission meetings  
until the Governor appoints a new Commissioner to replace her. Her initial term expired June 30, 
2017, but she can continue to serve as she was filling the unexpired term of a prior 
Commissioner. She will not be seeking another full six-year term with the Gambling 
Commission.  

Director Trujillo stated that the agency has had a couple cases regarding financial exploitation 
of the elderly, where family members were gaining trust of their family and taking funds to 
gamble with. The story was on KOMO News and the Nevada News channel 31. 

Legislative Update 

Brian Considine gave a short legislative report. He reported House Bill 2213 was passed and 
signed by the Governor on June 27th. The agency would like to thank Representative Smith for 
helping us on this bill. 

The Washington State 2017-2019 Budget passed. There was no direct financial impact to the 
Gambling Commission’s revolving account or gambling activities. There was a 6% state 
employee salary increase, which will be phased in over three steps. The first of the three step 
process will begin July 1, 2017, the second step will be July 1, 2018, and the third and final step 
of the increase will be January 1, 2019. 

Also, the Paid Family Medical Leave Act passed and was signed by the Governor. It was signed 
on July 5th; payroll deductions will start being collected in 2019. Benefits for that will start in 
2020 and employees can start utilizing those benefits then. 

Lastly, Brian updated the Commissioners on the New Jersey Sports Betting Case. New Jersey 
sued the NCAA and multiple agencies, challenging the Professional Amateur Sports Protection 
Act, PASPA, and have been litigating it since 2014. New Jersey passed a law, but the law was 
struck down at every level. They lost every appeal. On June 27th, the Supreme Court accepted 
the New Jersey Sports Betting Case, unexpectedly. The Supreme Court could hear oral 
arguments and have a decision on the case by June 2018. This could impact the 2019 legislative 
session as to what Washington should do related to sports betting. 

 
Tab 2 
Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe Compact Amendment 
Washington State Gambling Commission Director David Trujillo, W. Ron Allen, Chairman, 
Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe and Washington State Gambling Commission Tribal Liaison Julie 
Lies presented the Power Point presentation for tab 2. Chairman Allen presented instead of CEO, 
Jerry Allen..  



3 
 

The Washington State Gambling Commission voted unanimously to forward the Jamestown 
S’Klallam Tribe’s Class III gaming compact amendment to the Governor’s Office for final 
consideration and signature. The Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe operates the 7 Cedars Casino in 
Sequim. 
 
“The Gambling Commission is responsible for negotiating tribal gaming compacts,” said 
Commission Chair Bud Sizemore. “The proposed changes reflect current regulatory practices, 
reduce duplication between tribal and state regulators and clarify the roles for each party.” 
 
Here is a summary of the major changes in the proposed amendment.  
 

• Authorizes a second gaming facility, though the Tribe does not have current plans for a 
second facility. 

• Allows the Tribe to operate any Class III table games authorized for play in Washington 
State. 

• Replaces state certification of employees with state registration verification.  The Tribal 
Gaming Agency will license new or renewing employees and then register them with 
the State. 

• Continues the requirement that the State Gaming Agency conduct criminal history 
records checks that look for activities that may pose a threat to the public or effective 
regulation of this compact. 

• Gaming employee registration with the State will be valid for three years unless 
disqualifying information is discovered; the State Gaming Agency will conduct 
criminal record checks annually.   

• Limits registration so that it is not transferrable to other tribal casinos or house banked 
card rooms. 

• The State Gaming Agency and Tribal Gaming Agency will conduct an annual 
comparison review to ensure records are consistent between agencies and licensure 
criteria is met. 

• Incorporates the Tribe’s current internal controls that were approved by the Tribal 
Gaming Agency and concurred with by the State Gaming Agency, as the minimum 
operating standards. The Tribe may make changes to its internal controls with the 
State’s concurrence. 

• The Tribe will determine when a tribal gaming agent will be present during gaming 
facility operating hours.  

• The Tribe will provide information annually about problem gambling education, 
awareness, and treatment program services for tribal lands and surrounding 
communities.  

• The Tribe and State have agreed to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding to define 
the schedule of fines and sanctions the Tribe or State may levy against a gaming 
employee or the gaming operation. 

• The Tribe must enter into a Gaming Station Transfer Agreement to lease Class III gaming 
stations or tables from another tribe when it operates more than 60 tables. 

• Clarifies keno standards. 
• Provides a framework to review and approve a wide area progressive connected to the 

tribal lottery system. 
 
 



4 
 

Commissioners Stearns and Patterson thanked the panel for their work on the Compact. 
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to forward the Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe Compact 
Amendment to the Governor for review and final execution. Commissioner Gray seconded the 
motion. The motion passed 7-0. 
Ex-Officios Senator Lynda Wilson and Representative Brandon Vick were not present for the 
vote. 
Commissioner Troyer voted by phone. 

Tab 3 
Defaults 
Haylee presented the materials for tab 3.  
 
Commissioner Gray moved to revoke the Class III Employee Certification for Arthur D. 
Fowler. Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0  
Commissioner Troyer voted by phone. 
 
Licensee was not present at the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Stearns moved to revoke the Class III Employee Certification for Michael L. 
Harward Commissioner Gray seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0  
Commissioner Troyer voted by phone. 
 
Licensee was not present at the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Gray moved to revoke the Class III Employee Certification for Arthur V. 
Principe Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0  
Commissioner Troyer voted by phone. 
 
Licensee was not present at the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Gray moved to revoke the Card Room License for Tasha Smiley.  
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0  
Commissioner Troyer voted by phone. 
 
Licensee was not present at the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Stearns moved to revoke the Card Room License for Filifili Tia. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0  
Commissioner Troyer voted by phone. 



5 
 

 
Licensee was not present at the meeting. 
 
Tab 4 
Petition for Rule Change - Ducks Unlimited                                                          
Assistant Director Tina Griffin and Mr. Scott Eisenhauer presented the materials for tab 4. Mr. 
Eisenhauer is requesting to increase the maximum value of a raffle ticket sold as part of a multi-
component package in a members-only raffle from $25 to $100. According to the petitioner, by 
raising the maximum price of a raffle ticket from $25 to $100 for raffle packages containing 
multiple components, the proceeds of the raffle are far more likely to exceed the fair market 
value of the awarded prize. Commissioner Stearns inquired on the information needed to make 
the decision for an increase. Commissioner Patterson also inquired on the frequency of the 
request to increase.  
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to initiate the rule-making proceedings by filing the rule as 
proposed for further action, as recommended by staff.  
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 4:0  
Commissioner Troyer did not vote. 
 
Tab 5 
Request to Exceed Raffle Prize Limits - Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation 
Assistant Director Tina Griffin, Mr. Bill Kenney, Eastern Washington Regional Director for the 
Elks and Mr. Douglas Doherty, Western Washington Regional Director for the Elks presented 
the materials for tab 5. Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation Inc. is requesting the Commission 
approve their request to exceed limits in raffle prizes exceeding three hundred thousand dollars 
in a license year ending February 26, 2018. The Commissioners had several questions about the 
request. 
 
Commissioner Gray moved to approve the Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation, Inc. exceed the 
annual raffle prize limit of $300,000 for their license year ending February 26, 2018, as staff 
suggested, but not to exceed $400,000. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 3:1 Chair Sizemore voted nay.  
Commissioner Troyer did not vote. 
 
Public Comment 
Chair Sizemore asked the audience for comment. There was no public comment. 
 
Commissioner Report 
Commissioner Patterson gave an update on the International Association of Gaming Advisors 
Summit she attended in June. She reported that the summit featured a wide range of very 
compelling topics between industry and regulators; also there were many academics at the 
meeting. Her primary focus was on the topic of problem gambling and how that problem is being 



6 
 

addressed from a global perspective, not just here in Washington State, or in this country, but 
how the entire world is addressing this problem.  
 
She also mentioned that she was impressed with the government-to-government training she 
received in June [through the Governor’s Office of Indian Affairs]. She suggested that the state 
give a mini version of that training to this commission.  
 
Chair Sizemore said over the last month, staff has done a great job putting together a 
government-to-government summit with tribal leaders from around the state. There was good 
participation. Commissioner Patterson joined him at the meeting and it was held on June 26 at 
the Hotel RL in Olympia. Chair Sizemore would like to see the meeting continue in the future. 
He received good feedback. He thanked the staff for the work they did to put that meeting 
together. 
 
He mentioned attending the Washington Indian Gaming Association (WIGA) meeting 
Wednesday, July 12 along with Director Dave Trujillo, Deputy Director Amy Hunter and Chief 
Financial Officer Mike Kashmar.   
 
Director Trujillo added that he and agency staff have recently been invited to attend the last few 
WIGA meetings and Washington Association of Gaming Executive (WAGE) meetings, which 
are at the Tribal business arms, and the Tribal Gaming Agency Director meetings and the tribal 
state lab work group.  
 
Chair Sizemore announced the next meeting would be at the South Puget Sound Community 
College Lacey Campus on August 10 & 11, 2017.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 1:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
 





















































 
 
 
Tab 2: August 2017 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
 

Scott Eisenhauer, State Chairman, Ducks Unlimited Washington.  As of June 9, 2017, there were 52 
Ducks Unlimited chapters in Washington that held raffle licenses. 
 
Attachments: 

• RCW 9.46.0277 “Raffle.” 
• WAC 230-11-086 Discounted pricing plans for tickets to members-only raffles.   
• Petition for Adoption, Amendment or Repeal of a State Administrative Rule received on May 23, 

2017. 
 

Petitioner’s Request  
 
Mr. Eisenhauer submitted a petition for rule change “to increase the maximum value of a raffle ticket sold 
as part of a members-only raffle from $25 to $100.  This rule change is necessary because it increase(s) 
predictability for licensees that a members-only (raffle), which involves selling tickets as part of a multi-
component package, will result in a net profit for the licensee.  By raising the maximum price of a raffle 
ticket from $25 to $100 for raffle packages containing multiple components, the proceeds of the raffle are 
far more likely to exceed the fair market value of the awarded prize.”  
 
At the July 2017 Commission meeting, representatives from Ducks Unlimited explained that their rule 
change request would allow them to assign a value of up to $100 for the raffle portion of their Bronze 
Sponsorship package, of which $250 goes to conservation efforts.  The ability to assign a higher value to 
the raffle tickets included in this package would allow the licensee to offset the cost of the raffle prize 
offered.   

Policy Considerations 
In 2009, the Legislature increased the cost of raffle tickets from $25 to $100.  In 2009, the Legislature 
increased the cost of raffle tickets from $25 to $100.  Today, when selling raffle tickets, bona fide and 
charitable organizations can charge up to $100 for a raffle ticket.  When using a pricing scheme, bundling 
tickets or discounting tickets, such organizations must follow WAC rules that authorize such alternative 
methods of selling tickets.  The petitioner is requesting to modify the WAC to address the petitioners 
pricing scheme. 
 
Licensees could include multiple tickets at $25 each as part of a multi-component package under the 
current rule.  For example, Ducks Unlimited could include four raffle tickets in their multi-component 
package at $25 each.   
 

 
 
 

Petition for Rule Change  
WAC 230-11-087 Other pricing plans for members-only raffles. 

 
 

August 2017 – Discussion  
July 2017 – Discussion and Possible Filing 

 
 



  

WAC (6/20/2017 12:04 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

WAC 230-11-087 Other pricing plans for members-only raffles. (1) 

Licensees may sell multiple tickets to enter one or more drawings as a 

package if the total price of the package does not exceed twenty-five 

dollars.
 

(2) Licensees may include tickets to enter a raffle as a part of a 

package that includes dues, entertainment, or other fund-raising activ-

ities if:
 

(a) The package discloses the value of each component of the package 

to the purchaser; and
 

(b) The value of each individual raffle ticket does not exceed 

twenty-five one hundred dollars.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-20-040 (Order 602), § 230-

11-087, filed 9/26/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 



RCW 9.46.0277  "Raffle." 
 

"Raffle," as used in this chapter, means a game in which tickets bearing an individual number 
are sold for not more than one hundred dollars each and in which a prize or prizes are awarded 
on the basis of a drawing from the tickets by the person or persons conducting the game, when 
the game is conducted by a bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization, no person other than a 
bona fide member of the organization takes any part in the management or operation of the 
game, and no part of the proceeds thereof inure to the benefit of any person other than the 
organization conducting the game. 

 
[ 2009 c 133 § 1; 1995 2nd sp.s. c 4 § 1; 1987 c 4 § 20. Formerly RCW 9.46.020(19).] 
 

  

http://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2009-10/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/1053.SL.pdf?cite=2009%20c%20133%20%C2%A7%201;
http://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/1995-96/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/Senate/5269.SL.pdf?cite=1995%202nd%20sp.s.%20c%204%20%C2%A7%201;
http://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1987c4.pdf?cite=1987%20c%204%20%C2%A7%2020.
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.020


WAC 230-11-086 Discounted pricing plans for tickets to members-only raffles. 
In discounted pricing plans, licensees may sell tickets for a discounted price based on the number 
of tickets a player purchases if: 

(1) The amount of the discount is set before any raffle tickets are sold; and 
(2) Participants are allowed to purchase a single ticket; and 
(3) There is only one discount plan for each raffle; and 
(4) The cost of a single ticket, without a discount, does not exceed ten dollars; and 
(5) The total cost of a discount package does not exceed twenty-five dollars; and 
(6) The cost of a single ticket is printed on each ticket (for example, one dollar each); and 
(7) The discounted tickets are identified by a unique ticket audit numbering system; and 
(8) The licensee establishes an audit system that includes internal controls and procedures to 
determine gross gambling receipts from the sale of tickets using a discounted pricing plan. 

 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-20-040 (Order 602), § 230-11-086, filed 9/26/06, effective 
1/1/08.] 
 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070
















Agenda

I. FY 2017 Recap

II. Revised 2017‐19 Revenue Estimate

III. Revised 2017‐19 Expenditure Estimate

IV. Revised Estimated Working Capital Balance

V. Staff Recommendation



FY 2017 Recap
Estimate Actual Variance

Revenue $13,991,000 $14,410,000 $419,000

Expenditures $14,229,000 $12,993,000 ($1,236,000)

Ending Working Capital $5,713,000 $8,358,000 $2,645,000

Other Revenue
State Seizure Funds $6,000

Federal Seizure Funds $49,000

Industrial Insurance Premium Refund $91,000

Other Expenditures
Federal Seizure Funds $171,000



Revenue Estimates
Gambling Revolving Account

2017‐19 Biennium

FY 2018 FY 2019 Biennial Total

Approved: August 2016 $10,377,000 $14,194,000 $24,571,000

Revised: August 2017 12,370,000 10,741,000 23,111,000

Change $1,993,000 ($3,453,000) ($1,460,000)

2016 estimates assumed a staggered implementation of a fee restructure 
beginning July 1, 2017. Implementation is now planned for July 1, 2018 and is 
reflected in the revised estimates.



Expenditure Estimates
Gambling Revolving Account

2017‐19 Biennium

FY 2018 FY 2019 Biennial Total

Approved: August 2016 $13,731,000 $13,731,000 $27,462,000

Revised: August 2017 14,308,000 14,426,000 28,734,000

Change $577,000 $695,000 $1,272,000

Current estimates include:

Updating the Case Information Management System $300,000

Software/hardware upgrades $250,000



Working Capital Balance
Gambling Revolving Account

FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020
Beginning WC $8,358,000 $6,420,000 $2,735,000

Plus: Estimated Revenue 12,370,000 **10,741,000 13,634,000

Total $20,728,000 $17,161,000 $16,369,000
Less: WC Reserve * (2,385,000) (2,404,000) (2,366,000)

Available Revenue $18,343,000 $14,757,000 $14,003,000
Less: Estimated Expenditures (14,308,000) (14,426,000) (14,200,000)

Available Remaining $4,035,000 $331,000 ($197,000)
Plus:WC Reserve 2,385,000 2,404,000 2,366,000

Ending WC $6,420,000 $2,735,000 $2,169,000

*WC Reserve = 60 days of estimated expenditures
** FY 2019 Estimated Revenue assumes staggered implementation of simplified fee structure beginning in July 2018     



Staff Recommendation

FY 2018 FY 2019 Biennial Total

Revenue $12,370,000 $10,741,000 $23,111,000

Expenditures:

Gambling Revolving Acct $14,308,000 $14,426,000 $28,734,000

Industrial Ins. Refund Acct $25,000 $25,000 $50,000

FTE’s 114 114 114

Approve the following:



7.2%

33.4%

6.9%

8.8%

37.6%

6.2%

FY17 Revenue by Source 

NonProfit Commercial Vendor Individuals Tribal Other



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

P.O. Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360)486-3440  (800)345-2529  FAX (360) 486-3624 

 
August 10, 2017 
 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS   EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 
  Bud Sizemore, Chair    Senator Steve Conway 

Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair  Senator Lynda Wilson 
Kelsey Gray, PhD.   Representative Brandon Vick 
Chris Stearns    Representative David Sawyer 
Ed Troyer 

 
FROM: Lisa Saila, Special Agent/Problem Gambling Liaison 
 
SUBJECT: Recap of National Conference on Problem Gambling 
 
 
From July 19, 2017 through July 22, 2017, I attended the National Council on Problem 
Gambling’s annual conference in Portland, OR. The event also included a Tribal Summit on 
Responsible Gaming. Vice-Chair Patterson, Commissioner Stearns and Amy Hunter also 
attended the conference. There were multiple take-aways from attending the summit and the 
conference. 
 
The Tribal Summit on Responsible Gaming was the first of its kind for the National Council on 
Problem Gambling.  It was to discuss innovative responsible gaming practices for tribal casinos 
with key leaders from tribal gaming across the United States.  The Summit also provided 
important networking opportunities for tribal leaders and casino executives with responsible 
gaming and problem gambling advocates and treatment providers. Vice-Chair Patterson and 
Commissioner Stearns also attended the Summit. 
 
There were several important programs that were discussed during the Tribal Summit.  
 

 The Mohegan Sun’s self-exclusion program.  Their program is five years. If the player 
violates, all winnings are surrendered and the player can be charged with trespassing.  In 
addition, their program is unique in that the player can self-exclude online.   

 
 The Oklahoma Association for Problem Gambling is a nonprofit organization that 

provides training for Oklahoma Tribal Casinos.  This training includes a Tribal 
Responsible Gaming Certification and a self-exclusion program.  

 
 The Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling has created an innovative online gambling 

employee training to recognize signs of problem gambling. 
 
In addition, The National Council on Problem Gambling Conference offered a multitude of 
training and education surrounding problem gambling. I attended several training sessions 



Problem Gambling Update 
Page 2 of 2 
 

regarding self-exclusion.  Washington State does not currently have a statewide self-exclusion 
program.   
 
Self-exclusion is a procedure allowing people who have developed a problem gambling to create 
external controls to help them be more responsible in their gambling practices.  Self-exclusion is 
seen as a responsible gambling practice by the industry. 
 
There is a lack of uniformity across all states on how self-exclusion is operated.  There are 
different policies (this includes penalties), length of self-exclusion, how a person enrolls, the 
removal process, jurisdiction of gambling facilities and allocation of money.  All of these factors 
impact how the self-exclusion programs are run from state to state.  Also, as mentioned above 
some states have no self-exclusion programs. 
 
There are several facilities that offer successful self-exclusion programs.  The British Columbia 
Voluntary Self Exclusion program uses GameSense which is a responsible gaming model.  A 
player can enroll at the casino, at the BC Lottery Corporate office, or a staff person from BC 
Lottery will meet them in their community to enroll.  The length of the self-exclusion can be 6 
months, 1, 2 or 3 years.  The player must sign up; another person cannot enroll on their behalf.  If 
a player violates any winnings will be forfeited by the player and they will be asked to leave. 
 
The Massachusetts Gaming Commission’s Voluntary Self Exclusion Program uses GameSense 
too.  Enrollment must be in person at the “GameSense,” information center at the casino, at the 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission, or Massachusetts Council on Compulsive Gambling.  The 
length of self-exclusion is 6 months, 1, 3 or 5 years or lifetime.  If a player is found on the floor 
of any Massachusetts casino, they must forfeit all money wagered, losses or winnings.  
Additionally, the player remains on the self-exclusion list until they meet in person with a trained 
professional at the GameSense information center, Massachusetts Gaming Commission or the 
Massachusetts Council on Compulsive Gambling. 
 
These two examples give you an example of how two separate self-exclusion programs operate. 
 
Additionally, Commissioner Patterson, Amy Hunter, Ann Gray, Problem Gambling Program 
Manager at Division of Behavioral Health and Recovery, which is within DSHS, and I met with 
Susan Harris, Licensed Mental Health Counselor from Free by the Sea a drug and alcohol 
recovery center.  Our meeting was very informative in regards to starting the discussion on an in-
state residential treatment facility in Washington State for problem gambling.  Washington State 
does not currently have an in-state residential treatment facility for problem gambling.  Ms. 
Harris provided details of treatment offered and the desire to become a licensed residential 
treatment provider for problem gambling 
 
Other sessions I attended included Tools and Tips for Working with Seniors, Minorities and 
Other Populations; Business Case for Responsible Gaming: Extreme Targeting: How to Reach 
Problem Gamblers, Regulators Roundtable including Commissioner Stearns: The Spiritual 
Seduction of Gambling and How Do Cognitive Distortions Change During Problem Gambling 
Treatment.  It was a very intensive training. 
 
Both the Tribal Summit on Responsible Gaming and the National Council on Problem Gambling 
Conference were beneficial on growing my knowledge in the problem gambling arena. 
 
 



Washington State 
Gambling Commission
Problem Gambling Update
August 2017

Special Agent Lisa Saila,

Problem Gambling Liaison



“Protect the public by 
ensuring that gambling is 

legal and honest”



Breakout Session Tracks:

Treatment
Responsible Gaming & Regulation

Community & Recovery
Prevention

31st

National Conference on 
Problem Gambling

Portland, Oregon



What is
Problem 

Gambling?
Compromises, disrupts, or 

damages family, personal, or 
vocational pursuits

Causes psychological, financial, 
emotional, marital, legal, or other 

difficulties for self/others



Tribal Summit
Attendees:

Vice Chair Patterson, Commissioner Stearns, 
Deputy Director Hunter,

Problem Gambling Liaison Saila

1st Tribal Summit on Responsible Gaming to 
discuss innovative gaming practices for tribal 
casinos; key leaders from tribal gaming across 

the United States

Networking opportunities:
tribal leaders, casino executives, responsible 

gambling advocates, treatment providers



New online training for employees to 
recognize problem gamblers

5-year self exclusion program.  Arrest for 
trespass, jackpot winnings surrendered

Training for tribal casinos; includes Tribal 
Responsible Gaming Certification Program

Mohegan
Sun

Okla. Assoc. for 
Problem & 

Compulsive
Gambling

Evergreen
Council on

Problem
Gambling



Self-Exclusion

External controls to help problem 
gamblers be more responsible

Viewed by industry as a 
responsible gambling practice

Lack of uniformity



Exclusion periods:
6 months; 1, 3 or 5 years; 

Lifetime

Enroll:
At the casino, BCLC office, or 
BCLC will meet you in your 

community

Voluntary only

Violations:
Winnings are forfeited, 
player is asked to leave

British 
Columbia 

Lottery 
Corporation 

GameSense



Exclusion periods:
6 months; 1,2 or 3 years

Enroll:
At the casino, Mass Gaming, 
or Massachusetts Council on 

Compulsive Gambling 

Violations:
Winnings and wagers are 

forfeited

Removal:
Must meet with trained 

professional

GameSense

Massachusetts
Gaming

Commission



Questions?


	Commission Board
	Meeting Agenda
	Tab 1a July Meeting Minutes
	Tab 1b HBCR License
	Tab 2 Rule Change
	Tab 3 Budget
	Tab 4 Problem Gambling Update

